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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To
The Members of
Kusum Industrial Gases Ltd.

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 41 Annual Report on the business and operations of
the Company together with the Audited Financial Accounts for the year ended 31 March, 2023.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

(Amount in Rs.)

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Profit before exceptional items and tax 3,87,70,170 6,39,54,742
Less : Provision for taxation 81,98,126 1,47,81,391
Profit after taxation 3,05,72,044 4,91,73,351

Other Comprehensive Income

1,32,01,78,851

-84,73,70,199

Balance brought forward from Previous year

4,15,38,92,828

4,95,20,94,292

5,50,46,43,723 | 4,15,38,97,444
Appropriations
Income Tax Adjustments 4,65,278 4,616
Surplus carried to balance sheet and OCI 5,50,41,78,445 4,15,38,92,828
5,50,46,43,723 | 4,15,38,97,444

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Your Company has recorded a profit after tax of Rs.305.72 Lakhs as against Rs.491.73 Lakhs recorded
in the previous year.

FUTURE OUTLOOK
Your Directors are hopeful of a better performance during the current financial year too.
DIVIDEND

Considering the need for ploughing back the available resources into the business, your Directors do
not recommend any dividend for the year ended 31t March, 2023.

RESERVES

Your Directors have not proposed any amount to be transferred to General Reserve for the year under
review.

Meetings of Directors

Board Meeting

During the year 2022-23, the directors were met Five times inter-alia to review the operation of the
company and to discuss the financial results as well as the future business plans / strategy of the

company. The board meetings were held on 28.05.2022; 13.08.2022; 11.11.2022; 02.01.2023;
10.02.2023 and 27.03.2023.



DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
Presently, the Board has Two Independent (Non-Executive) Directors and One whole-time Director (Exexutive).

During the year, Board has appointed Mr. Dinesh Parakh, Director as Chief Financial Officer and Key Managerial
Personnel w.e.f. January 02, 2023

The Board has appointed Ms. Priyanka Lachchiramka member of The Institute of Company Secretary of India
having membership number A35654 as Company Secretary w.e.f. April 01, 2023 in place of Ms. Ruchi Chowdhury,
Company Secretary having membership number A36632, who resigned from the office of Company Secretary
w.e.f. April 01, 2023.

STATEMENT ON DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

A statement on Declaration by Independent Directors under sub-section (6) of section 149 of the
Companies Act, 2013 is attached with the report as a separate annexure.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES

During the year under review the company has related party transaction as disclosed in the Annual
Accounts.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO CLAUSE (C) OF SUB SECTION (3) OF SECTION
134 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The Directors hereby confirm:

(i) that in the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards had
been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures ;

(ii) that the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the
profit of the Company for that period ;

(iii) that the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and irregularities ;

(iv) That the directors had prepared the annual accounts for the period ended March 31, 2022
on a going concern basis.

(v) That proper internal financial control have been laid down and followed by the company
and that such internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively.

(Vi) That proper system has been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.



STATUTORY AUDITORS

The Board had appointed M/s Sourabh Majumdar & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.
324201E) for the FY 2022-23 to fill the casual vacancy cause due to resignation of M/s. Ray & Co., Chartered
Accountants (Firm Registration No. 313124E) due to technical reasons.

M/s Sourabh Majumdar & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No324201E) shall hold the office
until the upcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company, on such remuneration as mutually agreed upon
between the Board of Directors of the Company and the statutory Auditors and eligible for appointment at the

ensuing Annual General Meeting.

AUDITORS’ REPORT

The comments by the Auditors in their report are self explanatory and in the opinion of the Board do
not require any further clarification.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 inter-alia requires every listed company to annex with its
Board’s report, a Secretarial Audit Report given by a Company Secretary in practice, in the prescribed
form.

The Board had appointed Mr. K. C. Khowala, Company Secretary in Practice, as Secretarial Auditor to
conduct Secretarial Audit of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24 and they have conducted the
audit and submitted the report which is annexed to this report. There are no qualifications or
reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers in the said secretarial audit report.

SHIFTING OF REGISTERED OFFICE

The Company has shifted its registered office to 3F, Park Plaza, 71, Park Street, Kolkata — 700016 from P-46A,
Radha Bazar Lane, Kolkata — 700001 w.e.f. April 01, 2023.

DEPOSITS
The Company has not accepted any deposits from public or others during the year under review.
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

During the year under review, no employee was in receipt of remuneration of/or in excess of the
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY & TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

The Company is not carrying on any manufacturing activities, hence information regarding
conservation of energy and technology absorption is not furnished.

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURE OR ASSOCIATES

The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint venture and Associate Companies as per details
given in the Annual Accounts.



PARTICULARS OF LOANS AND GUARANTEES

The Company has not given any loans or guarantee for loans taken by others under Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and also not made any investments beyond the limits prescribed under the
aforesaid section during the year.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO

Foreign Exchange earnings Nil
Foreign Exchange outgo Nil

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board comprising three directors out of which
not less than one - half are independent as per the requirement of the act and has formulated the
policy for appointment of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and determination of remuneration
including the criteria for determining qualification, positive attributes independence of a director and
other matters as provided under sub-section (3) of section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. In terms of
the Policy, the non-executive directors and the independent directors shall not receive any
remuneration, as well as they have wave their sitting fees for attending meetings of the Board and its
Committees.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has duly constituted Audit Committee in place with three directors as its members. The
Audit Committee had met four times during the year under review.

Annual Return

The Annual Return of the Company as on March 31, 2023 is available on the website of the Company at MGT-9-
Extract-of-Annual-Return_31.03.2023 Kusum-1.pdf (kusumindustrialgasesitd.co.in)

APPRECIATION

Your Directors wish to express their gratitude to the Shareholders, Bankers, Employees and all other
well-wishers for their continued support and patronage.

For and on behalf of the Boarg

Place : Kolkata
Dated : the 27" day of May, 2023


https://www.kusumindustrialgasesltd.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2023/07/MGT-9-Extract-of-Annual-Return_31.03.2023_Kusum-1.pdf
https://www.kusumindustrialgasesltd.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2023/07/MGT-9-Extract-of-Annual-Return_31.03.2023_Kusum-1.pdf

Annexures to the Directors Report

Annexure |
Particulars pursuant to Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

As the Company’s activities do not involve, by and large, any significant level of energy consumption,
no comments are necessary in respect of energy conservation and reduction of energy consumption.
In any event, continuous efforts are made to conserve energy to the extent possible.

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

As per Form B given as hereafter

FORM -B

Disclosure of particulars with respect to technology absorption forming part of the Directors’ Report
for the year ended March 31, 2023

Technologies absorbed:

Research & development (R & D)

1. Specific areas in which R&D was carried out
by the Company : NIL
2. Benefit derived as a result of the above R&D : N.A.
3. Future plan of action : None
4, Expenditure onR & D : N.A.
5. Technology absorption, adaptation : Constant efforts are made by

the Company to develop cost-
effective new systems/technologies.
C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO

Foreign exchange earning - Nil
Foreign exchange outgo - Nil
CIF Value of Imports - Nil

For and on behalf of the Boarg

Place : Kolkata
Dated : the 27" day of May, 2023



Annexure Il

Statement on declaration given by the independent director under sub-section (6) of section 149 of

the Companies Act, 2013

The Board comprises two Independent Directors who have submitted declaration in individual capacity

as follows:

(4) He is an Independent Director and a person of integrity and possesses relevant expertise and
experience;

(b) () He is or was not a promoter of the company or its holding, subsidiary or associate

(c)

(4)

(¢)

company;
(i) He is not related to promoters or directors in the company, its holding, subsidiary or associate
company;

He has or had no pecuniary relationship with the company, its holding, subsidiary or associate
company, or their promoters, or directors, during the two immediately preceding financial years
or during the current financial year;

None of his relatives has or had pecuniary relationship or transaction with the company, its
holding, subsidiary or associate company, or their promoters, or directors, amounting to two per
cent or more of its gross turnover or total income or fifty lakh rupees or such higher amount as
may be prescribed, whichever is lower, during the two immediately preceding financial years or
during the current financial year;

He neither himself nor any of his relatives—

(i) holds or has held the position of a key managerial personnel or is or has been employee of the
company or its holding, subsidiary or associate company in any of the three financial years
immediately preceding the current financial year;

(ii) is or has been an employee or proprietor or a partner, in any of the three financial years
immediately preceding the current financial year of —

(A )a firm of auditors or company secretaries in practice or cost auditors of the company or its
holding, subsidiary or associate company; or

(B) any legal or a consulting firm that has or had any transaction with the company, its holding,
subsidiary or associate company amounting to ten per cent or more of the gross turnover
of such firm;

(iii) holds together with his relatives two per cent or more of the total voting power of the
company;

or

(iv) is a Chief Executive or director, by whatever name called, of any non-profit organisation that
receives twenty-five percent or more of its receipts from the company, any of its promoters,
directors or its holding, subsidiary or associate company or that holds two percent or more of the
total voting power of the company.



KCKHOWALA

(Practicing Company Secretary)

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FORM NO. MR - 3
For t‘he»Fi‘n'ar'\ciaI Year ended March 31, 2023
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and RemunerationPersohneI) Rules, 2014]

~To,

The Members,

M/s Kusum Industrial Gases Ltd
- 3F-Park Plaza ,71,Park Street
Kolkata-700016

West Bengal

" | have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good.corporate practices by M/s Kusum Industrial Gases Limited (hereinafter called the
cqmpan'y).»SecretariaI Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. '

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
 other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its

 officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report
that in_my opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on
March 31, 2023 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has

. proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject
to the reporting made hereinafter:- ' ’ :

I'have examined the books, papefs, minute books,"forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2023 according to the provisions of: :
(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;
(iii) “The Depo'sitor'ies' Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the
. extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
_ Borrowings; . | '
(v) -The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
. India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):- SRR
" a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations .and Disclosure
. Requirements) Regulations, 2015; ' ' ‘ :
'b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares ‘and
“Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

- ¢. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations;
2015; ”

27, Weston Street, 2¥.Floor, Room No.: 205. KolRgta- 700 012.
Ph: 033-22114023, (M) 9831025638,
E-Mail-Rfiowalake_5 @iio;mai[com




XC. KT[OWﬂLﬂ

(Q’mctzcmg Company Secretary )

. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (There were no events / instances during the Audit
Period which attract the ap_plicability of the Regulations);

The - Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulations, 2014; '

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008 (There were no events / instances during the Audit Period which

- attract the applicability of the Regulations);

- The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Re"gulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

. The Securltles and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,

2009; and

"The. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018

(There weré no events / instances during the Audit Period which attract the applicability

* of the Regulations);

(w) AII other laws applicable to the. company in general. However, no Industry specific law is

R

appllcable to the Company. -

I have also examined compliance with the applieable clauses of the following:

Secrevta'riall Standards,iss‘ued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
(i) ‘The Listing Agreement entered into by_the Company with Calcutta Stock Exchange.

During t‘he:audit period under review the COmpany has_complied with the provisions of the Acts, Rules, -
. Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following observations:

"1 further report that-

‘~ a) The}lBoard of ‘Directors of the Company: is duly constituted with propér balance of Executive
- " Directors, Non-Executive Directors, Independent Directors and Women Directors.

-'b) Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings. Agenda and detailed

notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and
- obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for

i meanlngful part|C|pat|on at the meetmg '

Majorlty decnsnon is carried through wh|Ie the dissenting members views are captured and
recorded, if any, as part of the minutes.

27, Weston Street, sz Floor, Rpom No.: 205. Kolkata- 700 012.
Ph: 033-22114023, (M) 9831025638,
- E-Mail:Rfiowalake_S@hotniail.com




K C. K?fO’WﬁLﬂ

- ((Practzcmg Company Secretary)

N further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the
size -and- operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules;
regulations and gwdehnes -

| further report that durmg the Audit Period, the Company had’ not gone through any specific events

- having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance to the above referred laws, rules,
regulations, gundelmes standards, etc.

ThIS report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms as an’

mtegral part of this report.

K. C. Khowala

o Company Secretary in practice

" Place: Kolkata ACS No. 4695
CP No. 2421

Date:19™ May , 2023 -
' . UDIN: A004695E000337335

27 Weston Street, 20, Q“lbor, Room No.: 205, KolEgta— 700012
@k 033-221 14023, (Wl) 9831025638.
- E-Mail I{,ﬁcrwa&z/{,c S@hotmail.com



K, C.KHOWALA

(Practicing Company Secretary)

”Annexu re A"

{To the Secretarlal Audlt Report of M/s Kusum Industrial Gases Limited for the financial year ended March 31,
' 2023) '

To,
The Members,
Kusum Industrial Gases Limited

3F-Park Plaza ,71,Park Street
Kolkata-700016

o West Bengal

Our Secretarlal Audit Report for the fmancnal year ended March 31, 2023 of even date is to be read
-along Wlth this letter.

oL Malntenance of secretarlal record is the responSIblllty of the management of the company. My
‘responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. | have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable

- .assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was

‘done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. | believe that
.the processes and practlces | followed provide a reasonable basis for a opinion.

3."»| have not verified the correctness and appropnateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the company.

4. Wherever required, | have obtalned the management representation about the compllance of
laws, rules, regulatlons and happening of events, etc.

‘ , 5."The compllance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, and
standards is the responsibility of management My examination was limited to the verification of
“ procedures on test basis.

6. The secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor
of the efficacy or effectlveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the

company Af\w .

,i' ; K. C. Khowala

\_ }\ “\ Company Secretary in practice

“Place: Kolkata ACS No. 4695
CP No. 2421

. Date: 19" May , 2023

UDIN: AD04695E000337335

27, Weston Street, 24 Flpor, Room No.: 205, Kolkata- 700 012.
" ®Ph: 033-22114023, (ﬂfl ) 9831025638.
E-Mail:RfiowalaRs_5S@FRotmail com



- KCKHOWALA

- (@racticing Compary Secreta}y)

CERTIFICATE OF NON:-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V- Para C clause (10)(i)'of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015)

 To,
The Members,
M/s Kusum Industrial Gases Ltd.
3F-Park Plaza ,71,Park Street

" Kolkata-700016

- West Bengal

T have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the
o Directors of Kusum Industrial ‘Gases Ltd. having registered office at 3F-Park Plaza ,71,Park
Street Kolkata-700016 , West Bengal (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before
me by the Company for the piirpose« of issuing this Certificate, in accordance withRegulation
34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015.

‘In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including
Directors - Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) ‘as considered
- necessary and explanations furnished to meby the Company & its officers, I hereby certify that
- none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending
on 3_1“-March,'2023h‘ave been _débarred or disqualiﬁed from being appointed or continuing as
Directors of Companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate

* Affairs, New Delhi or any. such other Statutory Authority.

SrNo. | Name of Director ' DIN Date. of appointment
o R - in Company
1. | Mr.RAJIV AGARWAL . 00056650 09/11/2009

. 2.‘ v Mr DINESH PARAKH ‘ 00057091 30/09/2002

: 3. | Ms AVANTIKA GUPTA - ' 03149138 06/08/2012

Ensuring the. eligibility of for the ‘appointment / continuityof every Director on the Board is the
- responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of
the Company nor of the effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of

* the Company.
e, ' K. C. Khowala
S RN
o Qw,’mfﬁi}} - Company Secretary in practice
Place: Kolkata T o WY ACS No. 4695
A CP No. 2421

. Date: 19"'May, 2023 .

UDIN:A004695E000337269



Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on the financial year ended on 31/03/2023 of Kusum Industrial Gases Ltd.

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

l. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

i) CIN:- L23201WB1983PLC035668
ii) Registration Date: 11/01/1983

iii) Name of the Company Kusum Industrial Gases Ltd.
iv) Category/Sub-Category of the Company: - Public Limited Company

V) Address of the Registered office and contact details 3F Park Plaza, 71 Park Street, Kolkata - 700016
Ph: (033) 4051 3000 ; Fax: (033) 4051 3326
web-site : www.kusumindustrialgasesltd.co.in
e-mail : kusumindustrial@gmail.com

Vi) Whether listed company (Yes/No) Yes - CSE Limited
vii)  Name, Address and Contact details of Niche Technologies Pvt. Ltd.
Registrar and Transfer Agent 3A, Auckland Place ,7th Floor, Room No.7A & 7B, Kolkata -700017

1. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

Sl. No. [Name and Description of main products|NIC Code of the  |% to total turnover

1 Other Financial Activity K8 100.00

I1l.  PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -

HOLDING/ % of Applicab
SUBSIDIARY / |shares le
ASSOCIATE |held Section

NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE
Sl. No. COMPANY CIN/GLN

As per the Balance Sheet




KUSUM INDUSTRIAL GASES LTD.
VI. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year % Change
Demat Physical Total % of Total Demat Physical Total % of Total during the
Shares Shares year

A. |PROMOTERS
(1) |Indian

a) Individual / HUF 63000 238000 301000 25.347 63000 238000 301000 25.347 0.000
b) Centran Government

c) State Government

d) Bodies Corporate 47480 333300 380780 32.065 47480 333300 380780 32.065 0.000
€) Banks / Financial Institutions

) Any Other
Sub-total (A)(1) 110480 571300 681780 57.412 110480 571300 681780 57.412 0.000

(2) |Foreign

a) NRIs - Individuals

b) Other - Individuals

c) Bodies Corporate

d) Banks / Financial Institutions

e) Any Other
Sub-total (A)(2) 0 0 0 0.000 0 0 0 0.000 0.000
Total Shareholding of Promoter (A) = (A)(1)+(A)(2) 110480 571300 681780 57.412 110480 571300 681780 57.412 0.000

B. |PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING

Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks / Financial Institutions

c) Central Governments
)
)

d) State Governments

e) Venture Capital Funds

f) Insurance Companies

g) Foreign Institutional Investors (FII)
h) Foreign Venture Capital Funds

i) Others (Specify)

Sub-total (B)(1) 0 0 0 0.000 0 0 0 0.000 0.000

Non-Institutions

a) Bodies Corporate
i) Indian 451938 0 451938 38.057 451968 0 451968 38.060 0.003
ii) Overseas

b) Individuals

i) Individual shareholders holding nominal share
capital upto Rs 1 lakh 19422 34380 53802 4.531 19392 34380 53772 4528 -0.003
i) Individual shareholders holding nominal share
capital in excess of Rs 11

c) Others Specify

1.NRI

2. Overseas Corporate Bodies

3. Foreign Nationals

4. Clearing Members

5. Trusts

6. Foreign Bodies - D.R.

7. |EPF Authority

8. Unclaimed Shares A/C

Sub-total (B)(2) 471360 34380 505740 42588 471360 34380 505740 42588 0.000

s

Total Public Shareholding (B) = (B)(1)+(B)(2) 471360 34380 505740 42.588 471360 34380 505740 42.588 0.000

C. |Shares held by Custodian for GDRs & ADRs

GRAND TOTAL (A+B*C) 581840 605680 1187520 100.000 581840 605680 1187520 100.000 0.000




KUSUM INDUSTRIAL GASES LTD.
B. Shareholding of Promoters

Sl No. [Shareholder's Name Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year % of change in
No. of Shares % of total shares of % of Shares No. of Shares | % of total shares | % of Shares | during the year
the pany Pledged! b of the company | Pledged/enc
ed to total shares umbered to
total shares
1|ANKIT CREDITS PVT. LTD. 117380 9.884 0.000 117380 9.884 0.000 0.000
2|ANKIT GUPTA 65000 5474 0.000 65000 5474 0.000 0.000
3|AVANTIKA GUPTA 59000 4.968 0.000 59000 4.968 0.000 0.000
4|ENERTECH ENGINEERS (INDIA) PVT. LTD. 57200 4817 0.000 57200 4.817 0.000 0.000
5|P P GUPTA (KARTA OF HUF) 49000 4.126 0.000 49000 4.126 0.000 0.000
6|PADAM PRAKASH GUPTA 59000 4.968 0.000 59000 4.968 0.000 0.000
7|RAJ PRABHA GUPTA 69000 5.810 0.000 69000 5.810 0.000 0.000
8|RAJ PROJECTS PVT. LTD. 114980 9.682 0.000 114980 9.682 0.000 0.000
9|TECHNO LEASING & FINANCE CO. PVT. LTD. 91220 7.682 0.000 91220 7.682 0.000 0.000
TOTAL 681780 57.412 0.000 681780 57.412 0.000 0.000




KUSUM INDUSTRIAL GASES LTD.
C. Change in Promoter's Shareholding

Sl No.

Name

Shareholding at the b
the year

of

Cumulative Shareh
the year

Iding during

No. of shares

% of total shares
of the company

0
No. of shares % of

total shares

of the company

ANKIT CREDITS PVT. LTD.

a) At the Begining of the Year

117380 9.884

b) Changes during the year

[NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

c) At the End of the Year 117380 9.884
2|ANKIT GUPTA

a) At the Begining of the Year 65000 5474

b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

c) At the End of the Year 65000 5474
3| AVANTIKA GUPTA

a) At the Begining of the Year 59000 4.968

b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

c) At the End of the Year 59000 4.968
4|ENERTECH ENGINEERS (INDIA) PVT. LTD.

a) At the Begining of the Year 57200 4.817

b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

c) At the End of the Year 57200 4.817
5|P P GUPTA (KARTA OF HUF)

a) At the Begining of the Year 49000 4.126

b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

c) At the End of the Year 49000 4.126
6|PADAM PRAKASH GUPTA

a) At the Begining of the Year 59000 4.968

b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

c) At the End of the Year 59000 4.968
7|RAJ PRABHA GUPTA

a) At the Begining of the Year 69000 5.810

b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

c) At the End of the Year 69000 5.810
8|RAJ PROJECTS PVT. LTD.

a) At the Begining of the Year 114980 9.682

b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

c) At the End of the Year 114980 9.682
9| TECHNO LEASING & FINANCE CO. PVT. LTD.

a) At the Begining of the Year 91220 7.682

b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

c) At the End of the Year 91220 7.682

TOTAL 681780 57.412 681780 57.412




KUSUM INDUSTRIAL GASES LTD.

D. Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holder of GDRs and ADRs) :

Sl. |For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders Shareholding at the beginning of | C Shareholding during
No. the year the year
No. of shares % of total No. of shares % of total
shares of the shares of the
company company
1|AARKAY INVESTMENTS PVT. LTD.
a) At the Begining of the Year 42700 3.596
b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 42700 3.596
2|ASCU HEAT PUMPS PVT. LTD.
a) At the Begining of the Year 41490 3.494
b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 41490 3.494
3|BRIGHTSUN TRACON PRIVATE LIMITED.
a) At the Begining of the Year 58300 4,909
b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 58300 4.909
4|GREEN TEAK AGRO PROCESSORS PVT. LTD.
a) At the Begining of the Year 25060 2.110
b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 25060 2.110
5|J.P. FINANCIAL SERVICES PVT LTD
a) At the Begining of the Year 58800 4.951
b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 58800 4.951
6|NOBLE COMMUNICATIONS PVT LTD
a) At the Begining of the Year 53000 4.463
b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 53000 4.463
7|SURAKSHA PODDAR
a) At the Begining of the Year 7355 0.619
b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 7355 0.619
8|T M COMMERCIALS PVT. LTD.
a) At the Begining of the Year 59000 4,968
b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 59000 4.968
9| TECHNO INTERNATIONAL LTD
a) At the Begining of the Year 55820 4.701
b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 55820 4.701
10| VARANASI COMMERCIAL LTD.
a) At the Begining of the Year 50000 4.210
b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 50000 4.210
TOTAL 451525 38.023 451525 38.023




KUSUM INDUSTRIAL GASES LTD.
Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Sl. No. [Name Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding |
No. of % of total No. of % of total
shares | shares of the shares shares of the

company company

1|AVANTIKA GUPTA

a) At the Begining of the Year 59000 4,968
b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 59000 4.968

TOTAL 59000 4.968 59000 4.968




VI

INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Secured Loans Unsecured Loans Deposits | Total Indebtedness
Indebtedness at
i) Principal Amount 0 0 0
ii) Interest due but 0 0 0 0
iii) Interest accrued 0 0 0 0
Total (i+ii+iii) 0 0 0
Change in
* Addition 0 0 0 0
* Reduction 0 0 0 0
Net Change 0 0
Indebtedness at
i) Principal Amount 0 0 0 0
ii) Interest due but 0 0 0 0
iii) Interest accrued 0 0 0 0
Total (i+ii+iii) 0 0 0 0
REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:
Sl. no. Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total
Amount
1 Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions - - - - -
(b) Value of perquisites u/s - - - - -
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under - - - - -
2 Stock Option - - - - -
3 Sweat Equity - - - - -
4 Commiss|as % of profit NIL -
ion -
others specify - - - - -
5 Others, please specify - - - - -
Total (A) - - - - -

Ceiling as per the Act

Remuneration to other directors:

Sl. no.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of Directors

Independent Directors

Fee for attending board

Commission

Others, please specify

Total

Total (1)

NIL

o|lo|o|o

Other Non-Executive

Fee for attending board

Commission

Others, please specify

Total

Total (2)

Total (B)=(1+2)

Total Managerial Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as per the Act

oO|O|O0|O




VILI.

REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

Sl. no.

Particulars of Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

Total

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-

Stock Option

w

Sweat Equity

Commission

- as % of profit

others, specify...

Others, please specify

Total

PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type

Brief
Description

Section
of the
Compan
ies Act

Details of Penalty /

imposed

Punishment/ Compounding fees

Authority
[RD/
NCLT/
COURT]

Appeal made,
if any (give Details)

A. COMPANY

Penalty |

Punishment NIL

Compounding

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty |

Punishment NIL

Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty |

Punishment NIL

Compounding




SOURABH MAJUMDAR & ASSOCIATES, | 17C. Kavi Bharati Sarani, Lake Road, Opp. Charu

Chandra College, Kolkata - 700029, West Bengal
\ Chartered Accountants Mobile: 9830403662 / 9830690568 / 9231613118
Phone: 033 4065 5309
Email: casourabh70@gmail.com

Ref, NDuiivwnrenerencsresrssrnnes " : Date:
Independent Audi'tor‘s Report D reeemsrreserrssnsrearrererisanes

To the Members of 27.05.2023
KUSUM INDUSTRIAL GASES LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

i. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kusum Industrial Gases Limited ("the
Company"}, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023 and the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the cash flow statement and the statement of changes in Equity
for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

2. [nouropinion and to the best of our Information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act 2013 {The Act) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standard {"Ind AS') specified under section 133 of the Act, of
the state of affalrs of the Company as at 31st March, 2023, and its profit, (including Other Comprehensive
Income), its cash flows and changes in Equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10})
of the Companies Act, 2013, Our responsibllities under those Standards are further described in the
auditor's responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements section of our report, We are iIndependent
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India { ICAl) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audlt Matters

4. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of those standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide

a separate opinion on these matters,
5. We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Information Other Than Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

6. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The Other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon.




aney

V)

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon,

in connection with our audit of the financial statements, our respensibility is to read the other information
and in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements of our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit, or Otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the wark we have performed, We conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact, We have nothing to report in this regard,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The accompanying standalone financial statements have been approved by the Company’s Beard of
Directors. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financlal performance Including other comprehensive income, changes in equity
and cash flow of the company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of
the company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, Implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing these standalone financlal statement, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matter related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management wither intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations or has realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors Is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditors Responsibilities for the audit of the Standalone Financial Statement

10,

11,

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatement
can rise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial Statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evldence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
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misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3){i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are
also responsible for expressing our epinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
cantrols system In place and the operating effectiveness of such controls,

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management,

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report,
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and eventsin a
manner that achieves fair presentation. We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
Including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. We also provide
those charged with governance with a statement that We have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

12. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matter, the planned scope

13.

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we Identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our dependence, and where applicable, related
safeguard.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirement

14, As required by the Companies {Auditors’ Report), Order, 2016 (the Order') issued by the Central

Government of India in terms of sub section (11) of Sec 143 Companies Act, 2013 we give in "Annexure
A" to this Report, a statement on the specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said Order.

15. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report, to the extent applicable, that:




I

a)

b)

c}

d)

g

k)

16.

we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to cur knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit accompanying standalone financial statements;

in our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

the standalone of financial statements dealt with and cash flow statement dealt with by this report is in
agreement with the books of account;

in our Opinion, the aforesald standalone financlal statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014,

on the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the Board
of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on March 31st, 2023 from being appolinted as a
Directar in terms of the Section 164(2) of the Act;

As required by section 197 (16} of the Act, we report that the Company has not paid remuneration to its
directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits lead down under section 197
read with Schedule V to the Act. — Clause not applicable

We have also audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
Company as on 31.03.2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for

the year ended on that date and our report dated 27" May, 2023 as per AnhexXure B expressed
unmodified opinion; and

With respect to the other matter to be Included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rule 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information according to the explanation given us:

. the Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position
as at 31%* March, 2023;

ii. the company did not have any long-term contract including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses as at 31st March, 2023; and

fil. there has been no delay in transferring amount, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31% March ,2023

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of test checks carried out by

us durlng the course of audit of the Company, our reports on the matters specified in para 3A and 3C of

the Master Direction - Non-Banking Financlal Companies Audltors' Report {Reserve hank) Direction, 2016

are as follows:

i} The Company is an Unregistered Core Investment Company (CIC) in terms of the Reserve Bank of
India (RBI} notification no. DoR (NBFC} (PD} CC. No. 117/03.10.001/2020-21 dated 13 August, 2020
and is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.




ii} The Board of Directors of the Company has passed a resolution for not accepting any public deposit.

ili) The Company has not accepted any public deposit during the year;

iv) The Company has complied with the prudential norms relating to income recognitions, income on
Investment, accounting for investment, Indian accounting standards, asset classification and
provisioning for bad and doubtful debts as applicable to it in terms of Non-Banking Financial
company —non-systemically important Non-Deposit Taking Company (Reserve Bank) directions,
2016;

v} Based on the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not been classified as a
NBFC Micro Finance Institution {MFI) as defined in the Non-Banking Financial Company Non-
systemically Important Non-Deposit Taking Company (Reserve bank) directions, 2016.

For and on behalf of
SOURABH MAJUMDAR AND ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS, FRN: 324201E

g‘?ug\iﬁm
[SOURABH MAJUMDAR ]

Memb No. FCA-060062

UDIN: 23060062..cc0smenssomessassarssasnse




ANNEXURE A TO THE AUDITORS' REPORT

The Annexure referred to in independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of KUSUM
INDUSTRIAL GASES LIMITED, ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2023

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the financial
statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and explanations given to us and
the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we report that:

i)

ii)

i)

a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of Property, plant and equipment.
(B) The Company does not have any Intangible assets Accordingly, the provisions of the clause 3(i}{a)(B)
of the order are not applicable.

b) The Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management during the year
and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of
verification of fixed assets is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets.

¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the company, the company does not have any immovable properties including investment
properties, so this clause Is not applicable.

d) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and Equipment {Including Right of Use assets) or
intangible assets both during this year, so this clause is not applicable.

e) According to information and explanation given to us, no proceedings have been initiated or are
pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
{Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made there under. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(i)(e) of the Order Is not applicable to the company.

a) The Company does not have any inventory. Accordingly, the provisions of the clause are not applicable
to the company.

b) According to the Information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
recards of the company, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits in excess of
five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current
assets. Therefore, this clause is not applicable.

On the basis of our examination of the records of the company, the Company has made investrnents in
mutual fund during the year amounting to Rs. 14,50,53,526.81.
a) The company has not provided any loan or provided advances in the nature of loan, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firm, LLPs or any other parties so this clause is not applicable,
(a) (A) The company has not provided any loan or provided advances in the nature of loan. Therefore,
this clause is not applicable.




b)

d)

iv)

v)

vl)

vii)

o~

viil)

{B} In view of the above clause (iii) (a) (A) this clause is not applicable.
On the basls of our examtnation of the records of the company, the company has made
investments in shares and mutual fund and granted loans during this year which are not
prejudicial to the company's interest,

On the basls of our examination of the records of the Company, there is no amount which is
overdue for more than 90 days in respect of loan granted to such Companies, firm, LLPs Or
other parties.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the company, no amount is overdue for more than 90 days. Therefore, the
provisions of clause 3fiii){e), 3 (iti){f) of the order zre not applicable,

The relevant provision of section 185 and 186 Of the Act in respect of loans, investments,
guarantees, and security are not applicable to the company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(iv) of the order are not applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposit within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 Of the Act
and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rule, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3{v) of the Order are not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, the Central Government has not prescribed
maintenance of cost record pursuant to section 148 of the Companles Act' 2013 and Rule made
for any of the products of the Company. Accardingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order
are not applicable.

(a) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the company, amount deducted/accrued in the books of account in respect of
undisputed Statutory dues Including provident fund, employees' state insurance, income tax,
sales tax, goods and services tax, d uty of custom, duty of excise, cess and other material statutory
dues, as applicable, have generally been regularly deposited to the appropriate authorities.
Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding on the year-end
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

{b) There are no dues in respect of income-tax, sales-tax, goods and service tax, duty of custom
and duty of excise that have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of
any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the company, no transactions were surrendered or disclosed as income during
the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) which have not
been recorded in the books of accounts.

The Company has not been taken any loan or other horrowings or in the payment of interest
thereon to any lender. Accordingly, the provision of clause 3 (ix}{a) to of the Order are not

applicable,




x) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any
money by way of initial public offer or further public offer {including debt instrument).
Accordingly, provisions of paragraph 3(x)(a) of the Order are not appiicable,

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully
or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, provisions of paragraph 3 (x)(b) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xl) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us to the best of our knowledge, no
Fraud by the Company or on the Company has been Noticed or reported during the period
covered by our Audit,

{b) No case or Report under subsection (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act has been
committed to be filed by the Auditors in form ADT-4 as prescribed under the Rule 13 of
Companies {Audit & Auditors} Rules, 2014 with the central Government

¢) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made
to whistle-blower complaints received by the management of the Company, there are no such
complaint during the year,

xil) {a) The Unit is not a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph to 3{xii}{{a) to (ili){c) of the Order is not
applicable.
Xiit) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the

records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177
and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standard.

xiv) (a) According to information and explanation given to us, the Company has an internal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of its business;

(b) The reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit were considered by the statutory auditor.

xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or
persans connected with him.

xvi) {a) The company is a Core Investment Company( CiC), so this clause Is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the

records of the Company, the Company is a Core Investment Company (CIC) and the Company is an Exempted
CiCand fulfil both the criteria of a CIC as defined In the Regulation made by the Reserve bank of India.

{c) The Company is a Core Investment Company (CIC) and has 21 Companies are part of this Group.

xvil) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the has no cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding year.
Therefore, this clause is not applicable.




P

xviil) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, there has been no Resignation of the Statutory Auditors during the year.

xix) As per the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records there
exists material certainty as on the date of the audit report that Company is capable of meeting its lfabilities
existing at the date of Balance Sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the Balance
Sheet,

xx) (a) As per the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the

records, the Company has not transferred any unspent amount to a Fund specified in Schedule V! to
Companies Act, 2013.
{b) As per the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records, the Company has not undertaken any CSR Projects. Therefore, this clause is not applicable.

xxi} As per the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records, the
Company is not having any holding, subsidiary or associate Company and therefore this clause is not applicable,

For and on behalf of

SOURABH MIAJUMDAR AND ASSOCIATES

| CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS, FRN: 324201F

7

[SOURABH MAIUMDAR ]
Memb No. FCA-060062
UDIN: 2306006228 FH18227
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Annexure B to the Auditor's Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 {"the Act")

1.

In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of KUSUM INDUSTRIAL GASES LIMITED {"the
Company') as of and fér the year ended 31st March, 2023, we have audited the internal financial controls
over financial reporting (FCoFR) of the company of as of that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls.

2.

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the Internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal cantrol stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal financial controls
over financial reporting issued by ICAl. These responsiblilities include the design, Implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficlent conduct of the business, Including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial Information, as required under the Act.

Auditors' Responsibility

3.

Our responsibility is to express an oplinion on the Company's IFCOFR based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India {ICAI) and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to
an audit of IFCOFR, and the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the "Guidance Note") Issued by the ICAl, Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate IFCoFR were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the [FCOFR and
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of IFCoFR included obtaining an understanding of IFCoFR,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company IFCoFR.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's [FCoFR Is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's IFCOFR includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting




principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

[nherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of IFCoFR, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the IFCOFR to future periods are subject to the risk that IFCOFR may become
inadequate because Of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate Internal financial controls over financial
reporting and such Internal financlal controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March
2023, based the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components Of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting Issued by ICAI,

For and on behalf of
SOURABH MAJUMDAR AND ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS, FRN: 324201E
g

[SOURABH MAJUMDAR ]
Memb No. FCA-DG0062

UDIN: 23060062808 F R k227




KUSUM INDUSTRIAL GASES LIMITED

CIN : L23201WB1983PLCO35668
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 315T MARCH, 2023

{Rs. In Hundred)

Particulars Note No. As at Asat
Mar 31, 2023 Mar 31, 2022
ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
{a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2 6,629.39 6,959.81
{b) Caplital work-In-progress - -
{c) Investment Property - -
(d) Other Intanglble Assets - -
(a) Flnancial Assets: 3
(i} Investments 5,34,34,964.87 4,03,60,648.80
[il} Trade Recelvables - -
(ili} Loans - -
{iv} Others 2,340.10 2,340.10
N Deferred Tax Assets {net) 4 - -
(g) Other Non-Current Assets 5 160.10 160.10
{2) Currentassets
(a) Inventories - -
[b) Financlal Assets: 6
i} Investments 19,25,570.16 14,77,474.89
(ii} Trade Recelvables - -
[i)} Cash and cash equivalents 8,204.54 11,524.63
{iv) Bank Balances other than {1li) above - -
{v) Loans . -
[v1) Other Financial Assets 1,01,000.00 1,01,000.00
{c} Current Tax Assets (net} 7 - 0.06
{d} Other current assets 8 5,277.31 229.31
TOTAL ASSETS 5,54,84,546.47 4,19,60,337.70
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a} Equity Share Capital 9 1,18,752.00 1,18,752.00
(b} Other Equity 10 5,50,41,784.45 4,15,38,928.28
Liabilitles
{1] Non-current labilities
{a) Financial Liabilities:
{1} Borrowings - -
{0} Trade Payables - -
{H} Other financial llabllities - -
{b) Provistons - -
{c) Deferred tax liabllities {net) 4 2,96,313.93 2,81,067.42
{d) Other non-current llabllities - -
{2) Current liabilities
{a) Financtal Liabllitles:
(i) Borrowings - -
{ii) Trade Payables - -
{ili} Other financlal Nablitles - .-
b} Other current liabilities 11 845.00 590.00
{c) Provisions 12 21,000.00 21,000.00
{d} Current Tax Liabllities {net) 13 5,851.09 -
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 5,54,84,546.47 4,19,60,337.70
Significant accounting policies and notes to 1
financlal statements
The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the financlal statements.
As per our report of even date Far and o\ behalf of the Board
For SOURABH MAJUMDAR & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 324201E
6 \Wal
DIN 00050850
Directors

[ SOURABH MAJUMDAR |

Partner

M. No. FCA-060{62

uotn: 23060062 8GR EHT8223
Kolkata

27th May, 2023

Privanka Lachchiramka
Membership No. A35654
Company Secretary

ﬁ}% hesastitan, e«:é&-

Avantika Gupta

DIN 03149138




KUSUM INDUSTRIAL GASES LIMITED
CIN : L23201WB1983PLCU35668
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND 1055 FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

{Rs. in Hundred)

Particulars Note No. Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

1 Revenaue from operations - -

1. Otherincome 14 3,55,915.26 6,45,423.51

1. Total Income {I+11} 3,95,915.26 6,45,423.91

. Expenses
Cost of materfals consumed - -
Purchases of stock-in-trade
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-In-progress - -
Employee benefits expense
Finance costs

Depreaciation and amortisation expense 2 330.42 559,32
Dther expenses 15 7,883.14 5317.17
Total Expenses {1V} 8,213.56 5,876,458
V. Profit before exceptional items and tax (1I1-1V) 3,87,701.70 6,39,547.42
vi. Exceptional ltems - -
VII.  Prafit/ (loss) before tax (V-VI) 3,87,701.70 6,39,547.42
VIll.  Tax expense:
{1) Current tax B1,602.31 14742371
MAT Credit Entitlement - -
{2} Deferred tax 37895 380,20
IX.  Profit/ {loss} for the period from continuing operations (Vil-Vill} 3,05,720.44 4,91,733.51

X, Profit/ {loss) for the period from discontinued operations - -
Xl.  Tax expense of discontinued operations - -

X, Profit/ (loss) from discontinued operations [after tax) (X-X1) . .

XL Profit/ (loss] for the period (IX+XI1} 3,05,720.44 4,91,733.51

XIV.  Other Comprehensive Income:

A {1} ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 1,32,16,656.07 1,03,47,141.27
{li} Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or lass 14,867.56 2,20,717.65

B {1} Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -

{11} Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or lass - -
XV.  Total Comprehensive Income for the period {(XI+XI)
{Comprising Profit (Loss) and Other Comprehensive Income

for the perlod) 1,35,07,508,95 1,10,59,592.43
XVl, Earnlng per equity share {for continuing aperation):

{1) Basic 15 25.74 41,41

(2) Diluted 16 25.74 41.41
XVII.  Earning per equity share {for discontinud operation):

{1} Basic - -

{2) Dituted - -
XV Earnlng per equity share {for discontinued and continuing

operation):

{1} Basic 25.74 4141

{2} Dlluted 25.74 41,41

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

For SOURABH MAJUMDAR & AS50CIATES

Chartered Accountants -

Firm Registration No, 324201E

0

DIN 00056650

V'M " Directors
L fg}l::mnu MAJUMDAR | W ! Slae G
M. No. FCA-060062 Priyanka Lachchiramka Avantika Gupta |
UDIN: 23060062 BAW.EHEE22F Membership No. A35654 DIN 03149138
Kolkata ' Company Secretary

27th May, 2023




KUSUM INDUSTRIAL GASES LIMITED

Statement of changes in Equity for the year ended March, 31, 2023

A. Equity Share Capital

{Rs. In Hundred)

Balance as at March 31, 2022
Changes during the year
Balance as at March 31,2023

1,18,752.00

1,18,752.00

B. Other Equity

General Reserve

Other
Comprehensive

Particulars on Amalgamation Retained earnings Income- equity Total
Instruments

As at March 31,2023*%
Balance as at April 01, 2022 3,78,097.59 45,83,760.45 3,65,77,070.24 4,15,38,928,28
Profit for the year . 3,05,720.44 - 3,05,720.44
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of
income tax - - 1,32,01,788.51 1,32,01,788.51
Transfer to Retained Earning - - - -
Income Tax For Earller Years - (4,652.78) - {4,652.78}
Balance at March 31, 2023 3,78,097.59 48,84,828,11 4,97,78,858.75 5,50,41,784.45
As at March 31,2022*
Balance as at April 01, 2021 3,78,097.59 40,92,073.10 4,50,50,772.23 4,95,20,942,92
Profit for the year - 4,91,733.51 - 4,91,733.51
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of
income tax - - (84,73,701.99) (84,73,701.99)
Transfer to Retained Earning - - - -
Income Tax For Earlier Years - (46.16) - {46.16)
Balance at March 31, 2022 3,78,097.59 45,83,760.45 3,65,77,070.24 4,15,38,928.28

* There are no changes in Equity Share Capital and Other Equity due to prior period errors.

For SOURABH MAJUMDAR & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 324201E

3

| SOURABH MAJUMDAR |
Partner

M. No. FCA-060062
UDIN: 23060062 BGWFHI €22F
Kolkata

27th May, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board

Priyanka Lachchiramka
Membership No. A35654
Company Secretary

Avantika Gupta
DIN 03149138

Director




KUSUM INDUSTRIAL GASES LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 MARCH, 2023

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax

Non-cash adjustment to reconcile profit befare tax to net cash fiows

Depreclation/amortization on continuing operation
Net gain/(loss) on sale of Current Investments

Net Unrealised gain/{loss) on Fair Valuation of Mutual Fund

Operating profit before working capital changes
Movaments in working capital :

Increase/(decrease) in other payables
Decrease/f{increase) in other Non current assets
Decrease/{increase) in other current assets

Cash generated from / (used in) operations

Direct taxes paid (net of refunds)

Net Cash flow from / (used in) operating activities (A)

Cash flow from investing activities

Proceeds from salef{purchase) of current investments {Net}
Decrease/f{increase) in long-tarm loans and capital advances
Net Cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (B)

Cash flow from financing activities
Net Cash flow from / {used in) financing activities (C}

Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Components of cash and cash equivalents
Balances with Banks
In Current Accounts
Cash on hand
Total cash and cash equivalents

As per our report of even date

For SOURABH MAJUMDAR & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 324201E -

[ SOURABH MAJUMDAR | -
Partner

M. No, FCA-060062
UDIN: 23060062B8GWF HT 822

27th May, 2023

Priyanka Lachchiramka

Membership No. A35654
Kolkata Company Secretary

31st March, 2023
(Rs. In Hundred)

31st March, 2022

{Rs. in Hundred)

3,87,701.70 6,39,547.42
330.42 559.32
{1,532.79) (3,373.31)
(96,962.47) {52,766.65)
2,89,536.86 5,83,966.78
255.00 (743.60)

- 193.90
{5,048.00) 4,961.69
2,84,743.86 5,88,378.77
(80,403.95) {1,46,870.19)

2,04,339.91

4,41,508.58

{2,07,660.00) (4,40,000.00)
(2,07,660.00) {4,40,000.00)
{3,320.09) 1,508.58
11,524.63 10,016.05
8,204.54 11,524.63
6,657.33 9,975.91
1,547.21 1,548.72
8,204.54 11,524.63

-Le-"&u&-.% Q;.\»;tq-

Avantika Gupta _|
DIN 03149138

ard of Directors

Directors



KUSUM INDUSTRIAL GASES LIMITED
MNotes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023

2, Property, Plant & Equipment

{Rs. In Hundred)

Particulars Buildings Furniture and Office Alr Conditioner Electrical Total
Fixtures Equipments Fittings
Gross Block
As at March 31, 2021 20,649.81 11,360.00 33,254.34 5,215.52 210,16 70,689.83
Additions - - - - - -
Disposal - - - - - -
Adjustments - - - - - -
As at March 31, 2022 20,649.81 11,360.00 33,254.34 5,215.52 210.16 70,689.83
Additions - - - - - -
Disposal - - - - - -
Adijustments - - - - - -
As at March 31, 2023 20,649.81 11,360.00 33,254.34 5,215.52 210.16 70,689.83
Accumulated Depreciation
As at March 31, 2021 16,040.29 10,545.04 31,529.12 4,847.87 208,38 63,170.70
Charge for the period 222,72 216.94 49.45 70.21 - 559,32
Disposal - - - - - -
Adjustments - - - - - -
As at March 31, 2022 16,263.01 10,761.98 31,578.57 4,918.08 208.38 63,730.02
Charge for the period 211.95 65.63 13.06 39.78 - 330.92
Disposal - - - - - -
Adjustments - - - - - -
As at March 31, 2023 16,474.96 10,827.61 31,591.63 4,957.86 208.38 64,060.44
Net carrying amount
As at March 31, 2021 4,386.80 598.02 1,675.77 297.44 1.78 6,959.81
As at March 31, 2022 4,174.85 532.39 1,662.71 257.66 1.78 6,629.39




" Kusum INPUSTRIAL GASES LIMITED
* Notes to the Financlal Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023

* 1. Significant Accounting Policles

i1

12

13

15

Quervlew of the Company

Kusum Industrial Gases Limited ("The company} is a Core Investment Company (CIC) and does not require registratlon as per notiflcation no, DNBS.PD.CC. N0.274/03.02.085/2011-12 dated 11th
iy, 2012, As per the sald notification, a Company having an asset slze of more than Re. 100 crores and less than Rs.500 crares and net accessing public funds ks exempt from registration as €1C-
NDSE with RBI.

The company Is a public limited company Incarporated and domiciled In India and has Its reglstered office at P46A, Radha Bazar Lane, Kolkata - 700001, The company has its primary listings cn
Calcusta Stock Exchange,

In accordance with the notification dated 16th February, 2015, issued by the Minlstry of Corporate Affalrs, the Company has adopted Indian Actatnting Standards (teferred to as "Ind AS”) notlfled
under the Companles {Indlan Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 {as amended) with effect from April 1, 2016,

Basls of preparation of Financial Statements
These financial staterments have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard [Ind AS), under the historical cost convention on the accrual basls except for certaln financial
Instruments which are measured at fair values; the provisions of the Companles Act, 2013 {'the Act’} {10 the extent notifled) and guldelines issucd by the Securltles and Exchange Board of India

{SEBI). The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indlan Accounting Standarcs) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules Issued there after.
Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is inltially adopted or a revision to an existing I dard requlres a change in the

accaunting peficy hitherto In use.

As the operating cycle cannot be Identified In narmal course due to the special nature of industry, the same has been assumed 1o have duratian of 12 menths. Accordingly, all assets and Habllitles
have been etassified a5 eurrent or non-current as per the operating cycle and ather eritesfa set out In IND AS-1 ‘Presentation cf Financial $tatements’ and Schedule Il to the Compariles Act, 2013,
The Financlal 5 are pi ted In Indian Rupecs and all values are rounded off to the nearest two decimal except otherwlse stated. The presentation and grouping of Individual items in the
balanze sheet, the profit & loss statement and the cash flow statement, 85 well as the statement of changes in equity, are bated on the principle of materiality,

Use of estimates and Judgmonts
The preparation of the financlal statemenits In conformity with IND AS requires management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions, These estimates, judgaments and assumptlons affect

the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and labllitles, the disclosures of contingent assets and [fabilities at the date of the financial statements and reperted
ameunts of revenues and expenses duting the period. The application of accounting policles that require eritical accaunting estimates Involving complex and subjective Judgments and the use of
assumptions In these financial statements have been disclosed in Note no. 1.5, Accounting estimates could change from peried to perlod. Actual results could differ from those estimates,

Appeopriate thanges En estimates are made as management becames aware of changes In circumstances surrounding the estlmates, Changes in esti are reflected in the fl Tal
In the period In which changes are made and, i matetlal, thelr effects are disclosed In the notes to the financial statements,

Estimation of uncertalnties relating to the global health pandemle from Novel Coranavirus discase (COVID-19):

The Company has consldered the possible cifects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 en the carrying amounts of recelvables, unbilled revenues and investment in shares and
1tles. In developing the ptlons relating to the possible future uncertaintles in the global economic conditions because of this pandemc, the Company, as at the date of appraval of these

financial statements has used Internal and extetnal sources of Information including credit reports and refated information, tccnomiz forecasts, The Company has performed sensitivity analysis on

the assumptions used and based on current estimates, expects the carrying amount of these assets will be recovered, The Impact of COVID-19 on the Campany's financlal statements may differ

from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements,

Ctltical Accounting Estimates and Judgments

1.5.1 Property, Plant and Equipment

152

On date of transition, the company has adopted the optisnal exceptlen In accordance with IND AS 101 to measure Property, Plant and Equipment {PPE) at falr value and assumption of the same as
deemed cost. Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition or deemed cost on the date of transition or construction and subsequent impravements thereto less accumulated
depreciation and fmpalrment Yasses, If any. Cost of acquisition Encludes Inward frelght, duties and taxes [net of Cenvat availed), dismantling cest and Installation expenses etc, Incurred upto the
instalfation of the assets. An item of PPE Is detecognised upon disposal or when no future econcmic benefits are expected to arlse from use, Gain or loss arlsing on disposal of reticement of an item

of PPE Is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the canrylng amount of the assetand Is Ised In tie of Prafit & Loss,
Depreclation Is recognlsed on written down value basls over the estimated wseful lives [or lease term, if shorter) In accardance with Schedule Il of the & fes Act, 2013. Based on the above,
useful lives as estlmated for the assets consldered for depreclation are as follows:
Category Useful life
- Non-Factory Building [RCC Frame Strueture} 60 Years -
- Factary Building 30 Years
Ct I it
- Servers ond networks 6 Yeors
- Others 3 Years
Furniture and fixtures, Electrical Installation and Laberatery} 10Years
Equlpments
Office equipment 5Years
Vehicles
. Mator cycles, scooters and cther mopeds 10 Years
- Others B Years
Impak of Non-financlal Asscts

Assets are tested for impalement whenevar avents or changes In circumstances Indicate that the carrylng amount may nct ba recoverable, An Impairment kiss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recaverable amount is the higher on an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value In use, For the purpase of assessing
Impalrment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately Identiffable cash flows which are largely Irdependent of the cash flows from other assets or group of assets (cash-
d for possibl | of the impal 1t at the end of each reporting period.

generating units). Non-financlal assets that suffered an impairment are ¢

1.5.3 Finantlal Instruments

Afinanclal Instrument Is any contract that gives rise to a financkal asset of one entity and a financial llabllity or equity instrument of anather entity.

i) Financlal assets

Recognition and Inltial Measurement:
All financlal assets are Initially recognized when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the Instrumerdts. A financial asset s Inltlally measured at falr value plus, In the case of

financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transactian costs that are attributable to the acqulsition of the financial asset.
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Classification and Subsequent Measurement:

For purposes of subsequent measureenent, lnancial zssets are classified In four categories:

s Measured at Amortited Cost;

= Measured at Falr Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FYTGCL);

*  Maasured at Falr Value Through Prafit or Loss (FVTPL);

«  Equity Instruments measured at Falr Value Through Other Comprehensive Income [FVTOCI}. Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their Initlal recognition, except if and fn the
perlod the Company changes [ts business model for managing financlal assets.

s Measured at Amorized Cost: A debt Instrument Is measured at the amortited cost If both the following conditions are met:

- The assetls held within & buslness model whese ohjestive Is achleved by both eolfecting contractual cash flows; and

«  The contractual terms of the financlal asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and Interest {SPPI) on the principal amount cutstanding.

After Inltlal measurement, such financlal assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective Interest rate (EIR) methed.

«  Meatured at FYTOCH: A debt Instrument s measured at the FVTOCHf both the following conditlans are met:
- The abjectlve of the business madel 1s achleved by both collecting cantractual cash flows and selfing the financlal assets; and
- Theastet's cor ual cash flaws rep t SPPL.

Debt Instruments meeting these criterla are measured Inltfally at falr value plus transaction costs, They are subsequently measured at fair value with any galns or losses arising on re-measurement
recognlzed In other comprehensive income, except for Impabrment galns or losses and forelgn exchange gains or lasses. Interest caleufated using the elfectiva Interest method Is recognized In the
statement of profit and loss In investment income,

s Measured at FVTPL: FVTPL is a residual category for debt Instruments, Any debt instrument, which does nat meet the criteria for categosization as at amortized cost or as FVTOC), Is classified
23 FYTPL. In addition, the company may elect to deslgnate a debt Instrument, which otherwise meets amortized ¢ost or FVTOC! criteria, as at FVTPL. Debt Instruments Ineluded withln the FYTPL
category are measured at falr value with all changes recognized In the statement of profit and loss.

«  Equlty Instruments measured at FVTOCE: All equity investments In scope of Ind AS — 109 are measured at falr value. Equity instruments which are, held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For
all other equity Instruments, the company may make an irfevecable electlon to presentin other comprehensive Income subsequent changes in the fair value, The company makes such electionon
an Instrument by Instrument basls. The ¢lassification Is made on Initlal recognition and is Irrevocable. In case the company decldes to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOC, then all fair value
changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI, There is no recycling of the amounts from OCT to PAL, even on sale of Investment.

Derecegnition
The Company detecagnizes a financial asset on trade date only when the contractual rights ta the cash flows from the asset expire, or when It transfers the financial asset and substantfally all the
risks and rewasds of ownership of the asset to another entity.

Impairment of Finantlal Assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basls the expected credit losses [ECL) In assoclates with its debt. Instrumerts carded at amortised cost and with the exposure arising from lean
commltments and other financlal assets, The company recognlses o foss allowance for such losses at each reporting date.

The measurement of ECL reflacts:

- Anuntlesed and probability-welghted amount that Is d Ined by evaluating a range of p
= The time value of meney; and

111 " P

- Reascnable and supportable Information that Is available without undue cost or effort at the reporting date about past events, current conditlons and forecast of future economic conditions.

The measurement of the ECL allowance is an area that requires the use of complex models and significant assumptlons about future economic conditions and eredit behaviour (e.g. the likelihood of
customer defaulting and the resulting losses).

Write-off policy

The Company wrltes off financial assets, in whale or part, when it has exhausted all practical recovery etforts and has conducted there Is no reasonable expectation of recovery.

{I)FTnanctal Liablifties

Recognitlon and Initlal Measurement:

Financial llabilities are classifled, at initfal recognition, as at falr value through profit or loss, Ioans and berrowings or payatles, as approprlate, Al financiat liabilitles are recognized initfally at falr
value and, In the case of loans and borrowlngs and payables, net of directly attributable transactlon costs.

Subsequent Measurement:

Financlal liabititles are measured subsequently 3t amortized cost ar FYTPL A financlal liabllity Is classified a5 FYTPL If It is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it Is designated as such
on Inital recognition, Flnanclal llabilitles at FYTPL are measured at fair value and net gatns and losses, Including any Interest expense, are recognized In statement of profit or loss, Other finanzial
llabllities are subsequently measured at amortlzed cost using the effective Interest rate method. Interest expense and forelgn exchange galns and losses are recognized in statement of profit or
foss, Any galn or loss on derecognltlon is also recagnized In statement of profit or loss,

Derecognition
A financial hiability 1s derecognized when the oblig; under the llability Is discharged or cancelled or explres.

QOffsetting financial instruments

Flnanclal 3ssets and liabilitles are offset and the nat amount reported In the balance sheet when there Is a legally enforceable right to cifset the recognized ameunts and there ks an Intentlon to
settle on a net basls or realize the asset and settle the liability simultanecusly. The legally enfarceable right must not be coriingent on future events and must be enforceable In the normal course
of bustness and.In the svent of default, insalvency or bankruptcy of the counterparty.

Inventaries .
Stock In trade Is measured at Fair Value as per IND AS.

Revenue Recognitlon
Revenute 18 measuced at falr value of the
or service te 3 customer.

Ideration tecelved or recalvable. R is Isad when lor as) the Companies satisfy a performance abligation by transferring a promised goads

Bl
] Interast Income
Interest income Is recognised using the effective interest rate.

{i}] Dividend Income
Dividend Income Is recognised when the right to recelve payment is established.

{ih] Income from Investment
Profit / {loss) earned from sale of securities is recognised on trade date basls. The cost of securitles Is computed based on FIFO basls,

Liv) All ather Income are accounted for on accrual basis unless otherwlse specified. ﬂ?
=
)
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Provisions, Contingent LiabHitles and Contingent Assets, legal or constructive
{1} Provisions are recognlsed when there Is a present obligation as a result of a past event and it Is probable that an outflow of resources embodying etonornic beneflts will be required to settle the

abligation and there Is a reliable estimate of the amount of the cbllgation, Provistons are measured at the present value of management's best estimate cf the expenditure required to settle the
present ohligation at the end of the reporting period, The discount rate used to determine the present value Is 2 pre-tax rate that reflects cusrent market ossessments of the time value of money
and the 115K specific to the labllity, The increase In the provision due to the passage of time Is recognised as Interest expense.

{i}) A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made when there is a possible obligation asising from past events, the exlstence of which will be confirmed anly by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more untertaln future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present chllgation that arises from past events where It s elther not probable that an outflow of resources
will be reguired to settle or a rellable estimate of the cannot be made, When there Is a possible obligation or a present obligation and the likelihoed of cutflow of resources is remate, no

peovision or disclosure for contingent llability is made.
[iii) Contingent Assets are not recognised but are dlsclosed when an Inflow of economie benefits is probable.

Investments

Investments that are readily reallsable and intended to be held for nat mora than a year are classifi=d as Current Investments. All other investments are clzssified as Long-term Investments, Under
IND AS, Investments are measured at falr volue ond accordingly, difference between the falr value and carrying value Is recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss of tecognised as Other
Comprehensive Income,

Employce Benefits

[1) Short term Employee benefits are accrued In the year services are rendered by the employees,

[ii) Contributlon to defined contributlon plans such as Provident Fund ete. Is belng made in accardance with the statute and are recognlzed as and when Incurred, Cantribution to defined benefit
plans consisting of contrlbution to gratuity are determined at close of the year at present value of the amount payahle using actuarlal valuation technlques. Actuarlal gain and losses arising from
experience adjustments and changes In actuarial assumptions are recognlzed In other comprehensive Income. Other costs recognlsed In the Statement of Profit or Loss.

[i¥1) Other Tong term employee benefits consisting of Leave encashment are determined at close of the year ot present value of the amount payable uslng actuarlal valuation technlques, The
changes in the amount payable Including actuarial galn or loss are recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss,

Taxes on Income
Income Tax expenses comprise current tax and deferred tax charge or credit,

(i} Current Tax
Current tax Is measured on the basis of estimated taxable Income for the current accounting pericd In accordance with the applicoble tax rates and the provislons of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and
other appiiable tax Taws,

[il} Deferred Tax

Deferred Tax assets and labifitles 1s measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the perfod when the asset Is realized or the llability Is settled based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have
been enacted of substantively enacted by the end of the reporting perfod.

Deaferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabllities for “Inancial reporting purposes and the correspandlng amounts used for
taxation purposes [i.e., tax base), Deferrad tax is also recognized for carry farward of unused tax losses and unused tax credits,

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it Is probable that taxable profit will ba avallable agalnst which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be wiilized,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets Is reviewed at the end of each reporting period. The Company reduces the carrylng amount of a deferred tax asset to the extent that It 1s no longer
probable that sufficient taxable proflt will be avallable to allow the benelfit of part or that entlre deferred tax asset to be utllized, Any such reduction Is reversed ta the extent that It becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be avallable.

Deferred tax relating to ems recognized outside the Statement of Profit and Loss s recognized elther In other comprehensive [ncome or In equity.

Deferred tax assets and labilities are offset when there s a Jegally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax llabllities and when they refate to Income taxes levied by the
same taxatlon autherlty and the Company Intends to settle its current tax assets and [abllitles on a net basls.

Statement of Cash Flaws
Cash flows are reported using the indirect methed, whereby profit for the year ks adjusted for the effects of transactions of o non-cash nature, any delerrals or aceruals of past or future operating
cash recelpts or pay ts and ftemn of | or expl Tated with i ing of financing cash flows. The cash flowt from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are

scgregated. The Company considers all highly liquld lnvestmeants that are readily convertlble to known ameunts of cash ta be cash equivalents,

Earnlngs per Share
Baslc Earnlngs per share {EPS) amounts are caleulated by dividing the prafit for the year attributable to equity halders by the welghted average number of equity shares outstanding duting the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are caleulated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders adjusted for the effects of potertial equity shares by the welghted average number of equity shares

outstanding durlng the year plus the waighted average number of equity shares that would be lssued cn conversion of all the Jilutlve potentlal equity shares into equity shares.




2

(13

wrn

I

Non- Current Financlal Assets
{i} investmonts

Investments fafr value through Other Comprehenskve Income
a, Equity Shares [Quoted)

Raltarpur Industeles Ltd. {F.V. Rs. 2)
Checens Lid,

Golden Tobacco Ltd

GTL Inlrastructure Ltd.

Metored Speclaliey Oils Ltd.

Natlonal Steel & Agro Industeles Ltd,
Nextgen Animation Medla Ltd,

Octal Credit Capital Ltd,

Roafit Industries Ltd.

Silvetline Technologies Ltd,

Sun Earth Ceramnlcs Ltd,

Techno Electrlc & Engg. Co. Ltd, {F.V. Rs. 2}

b. Equity Shares {Unquated)

Qthers {*)

Ankit Credits Pyt. Lid,

Teloljan Techno Agro Ltd

Blaan] Zine Ltd,

Deserve Vincam Put, Ltd,

Direction Barter Pyt. Ltd.

Enertech Engineers [} Pvt. Ltd.
Gagan Realdev Pvt, Ltd,

Green Teak Agro Processars Put, Ltd,
Horiton Vintrade Pvt bid

Malestle Commatrade Pyt Ltd
Nawyug Infracon Pvt. Ltd.

North DinaJpur Power Ltd

Plnnacle Commodeal Pvt Ltd

Ra] Projects Pyt Ltd,

Saffron Enclave Pvt. Ltd,

Techna Blrbhum Green Power Generating Co. Ltd
Techno International Ltd

Techno Leasing & Finance Co, Pvt. Ltd
Techno Power Projects Ltd

Varanasi Cemmerclal Ltd

Varun Resources Ltd (#)

Varun Global Ltd ()

Total
Aggregate Amount of
Quated [nvestments
Unguoted Investments

Investments measured thraugh FVTOCH

{*} The breakup value of unguoted shares have been taken as on 31.03.2019.

Asat As
31 March, 2023 31 March, 2022

Rs. {In Hundred) R, {In Hundred)
Holdlng Value Helding Value
6,000 3600 5,000 69.00
6,500 1,430.00 6,500 1,430,00
49,091 21,060.04 49,091 45,728,27
20,611 144.28 20,611 309.17
5,03,905 2,261.57 503,905 2,267.57
10,000 32500 10,0c0 443,00
600 10.68 500 10.68
1,00,000 19,990.00 1.00,000 40,000.00
100 4.60 1co 4.60
3,500 76.65 3,500 76.65
100 a0 100 130
1,45,91,000 4,92,59,216,00 1,45,91,0C0 3,61,49,202.50
4,93,04,562.12 3,62,39,542L.74
2,00,000 25,080.00 2,00,000 25,060.00
9,09,900 1,01,362.86 9,05,500 96,176.43

1,811 - 1,811 -
- - 11,00,000 1,04,170.00
11,00,000 1,02,200.00 11,00,000 1,03,730.00
58,000 16,930.20 58,000 17,220.20
11,00,000 1,02,620.00 11,660,000 1,04,060.00
18,500 1,872.15 18,500 1,840.75
24,22,500 2,39,927.50 24,22,500 2,39,8272.50
7.22,500 71,455.25 7,22,500 71,527.50
51,000 4,559.40 51,000 4,488.00
3,008,000 29,970.00 3,00,000 30,030,00
22,72,500 2,24,977.50 22,72,500 2,24,977.50
72,000 13,010.40 72,000 13,435.20
2,28,000 2,25,993.60 2,28,000 2,34,817,20
3,00,000 24,5000 3,00,000 24,810.00
9,60,000 2,46,816.00 9,60,000 2,49,696.00
2,09,500 2,80,017.70 2,09,500 2,49,305.00
48,500 1,42,289.30 48,500 1,22,845,65
3,30,400 22,55,770.56 3,30,400 21,82,126.80
1,70,732 16,769.86 1,70,232 16,769.86
42,683 4,192.47 42,683 4,192.47
41,30,40L.75 41,21,106.05
. 5,34,34,964.87 4,03,60,648.80
4,93,04,56.12 3,62,39,542.74
41,30,402.75 41,21,106.08

N TETE Y T T

5,32,34,964.87 4,03,60,648.80

{H) Pursuant to the Composite Scheme of Arrangement and Amalgamation as approved by the Hon'ble High Court of Judicature at Bombay, shares of Varun Resources Limited & Varun Glabal
Limited has been Issued and alleted for the arstwhife Varun Shipping Company Limited. The shares of the company are yet to be listed.

[ii) Others
Other Advanices recoverable in cash or kind- considered goed
MAT Credit Entltlement

Deferred Tax AssetsfUinbllttlos tnot)

The balance comprlses temparary differences attributable to:

Deforred Tax Liabllitles

Dilference between book value of depreciable assets as per hooks of aceount and written
down value for tax purpeses

Tax Impact on Fair Value of Investments
Net Deferred Tax Uabilities

Othor Non-Current Assets
Security Deposit

Current Financfal Assets

{1} Investments
Investments at {ale value throuph Profit & loss
3. Mutual Funds {unquoted)

ABSL Low Duration Fund - Bir.« G

ABSL Savings Fund - Rir. - G

ABSL Liquid Fund - DIr. - G

ABSL Maney Manager Fund -Dlr. - G

ABSL Floating Rate Fund - Dir, + G

ABSL Overnight Fund - DIr, - G

Aggregate Amount of
Unguoted Investments

Investments measured through FYTPL

Asat Asat
31 March, 2023 31 Masch, 2022
Rs. (in Hendred) Rs. {in Hundred)
2,330.10 2,340.10
2,340.10 2,340.10
{2,003,52) {2,382.47)
2,98,317.45 2,83,449.89
2,96,313.93 2,81,067.42
160.10 160,10
160.10 160.10
ey
Asat Asat
31 March, 2023 31 March, 2022
Holdlng Value Halding Value
R, {0 Hundred) Rs, {In Hundred)
72,829.730 4,45,316.51 72,829.730 4,21,217.898
21,459,623 1,00,915.79 - -
72,606.834 2,63,623.22 - -
3,49,516.551 11,05,151.06 - -
- - 3,68,846.250 10,45,860,95
904,253 10,963.58 904.253 10,396.06
19,25,570.16 14,77,474.89
19,25,570.16 14,77,474.89
19,25,970.16 14,77,474.89
19,25,970.16 14,77,474.85

el

ey

R
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{11} Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances with banks in Cutrent Accounts
Cashon hand

{lil} Othars
Other Advances recoverable In cash or kind- considered doubtful

Gurrent Tax Assets [not]

Income Taxes

Other Curront Assets
Prepaid Expensas
Interest Accrued
Qther Recelvables

Equlty $hare Capital
Capital Structure

Authorlsed
13,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs, 10/-each
[Previous Year 13,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/~ each)

Issued, Subscribed and Fully Pald Up
11,87,520 Equity Shares of Rs, 10/- each
[Previous Year 11,87,520 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/« each)

Share Caplal Reconclliation
Equity Shares

Opening balance
Isstred during the perlod
Closing Balance

Panticulars of Equity Sharcholders holding more than 5% Shaces at Balance Sheet date

Ankit Gupta

Anlkit Credits Pvi. Ltd.

Ra] Projects Pvt, Lid.

Techno Leasing & Finance Co. Pvt. Lid,
Raj Prabha Gupta

The above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.
Shares held by pramater ot the end of the year

Anklt Gupta

Avantlka Gupia

P P Gupta

Padam Prakah Gupta

Raj Prabha Gupta

Ankit Credits Pvt. Ltd,

Enertech Engincers {I) Pvt Ltd

Raj Projects Pyt Ltd.

Yechne Leasing & Flnance Co. Pvt, Ltd,

Terms of Issue of equity shares

Asat Asat
31 March, 2023 31 March, 2022
Rs. {In Hundred} Rs. {In Hundred)
6,657,323 8,975.91
1,547.21 1.548.72
8,204.54 11,524.63
1,01,000.00 1,01,000.00
1,01,000.00 1,01,000.00
- 0,06
- 0.06
20.00 1200
5.030.00 -
217.31 217,31
§=,277.31 229,31
Asat Asat
31 March, 2023 31 March, 2022
Rs. {ln Hundred} Rs. {In Hundred)
1,30,000,00 1,30,000.00
1,30,000.00 1,30,000.00
e
1,18,752,00 1,18,752.00
1,18,252.00 1,18,752.00
= =HE L
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Nos. Amount - Rs. {* 00) Nos, Amount - Rs. {* 00)
11,87,520 1,18,752.00 11,687,520 1,18,752.00
11,872,520 1,18,752.00 11,857,520 1,18,752.00
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Nos. % holding Nos. % holding
65,000 547 65,000 547
1,17,380 5,88 1,17,380 .88
1,14,980 9,68 1,14,980 .68
91,220 7.68 91,220 7.68
69,000 S5.61 69,000 581
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Naos. % holding Nos. % halding
€5,000 547 65,000 5.47
59,000 4.97 59,000 A4.97
45,000 413 48,000 4.13
58,000 497 59,000 497
69,000 581 69,000 5.81
1,17,380 9.88 1,17,380 2.88
57,200 4,82 57,200 4.82
1,14,980 5.68 1,134,980 9.68
91,220 7.68 91,220 7.68

The Company has only one class of shates referred to as equity shares having a par value of Rs 18. Each holder of equity share Is entitled to one vote per share. In the event af liquldatien, the
equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remainlng assets of the Company, after distributlon of all preferential amount, In proportion to thelr shareholding.

No sharas have been reserved for Issis= under aptions and contracts / commitments for the sale of shares/dislnvestment as at the Balance Sheet date.,

The Company has not allotted any shares as fully pald up pursuant to contract(s) without payment belng recebved in cash or by way of fully paid benus shares nor has bought back any shares during

the perlod of five years immediately preceding the date at which the Balance Sheetis prepared.

No convertible securitles have been Issued by the Company during the year.
No calls are unpaid by any Director and Officer of the Company durlng the year.

The Company has not forfeited any shares,




Asat Asat

31 Mareh, 2023 31 March, 2022
" 10 Other Equity Rs. {in Hundred) Rs, [In Hundred)
{l) General Reserve on Amalgamatlon
Balance byt 3,78,097.59 3,78,097.59
{l1} Retalned Earnings
Balance at the beginning of the reporting perled 45,83,760.45 40,92,073.10
Add: Income Tax Adjustments {4,652.78) {46.16)
Add: Totz] Income n accordance with IND AS 3,05,720.54 4,91,733.51
Add: Transfer from OC1 32,340.00 -
Net Surplusf{Deficit) at the end of the vear 49,17,168.11 45,83,760.45
{ill) Other Comprehensive tncome
Balance at the beginning of the year 3,65,77,070.24 4,50,50,772.23
Add: Investments easried at FYTOO! 1,32,01,788.51 (84,73,701.99)
Less: Transler to retalned earnings 32,340,00 -
Equity instrument through other comprehensive Income 4,97.46,518.75 3,65,77,070.24
Tatal 5,50,41,784.45 4,15,38,928.28

Description of nature and purpose of eath reserve

tlon

| Reserve an A
G I Reserve on ! lon rep ts the reserve d cn amalgamatlon undergone by the company In the nature of merger.

Retalned Earning
Created out of accretlon of prefits.

Other Comprehensive Income
The Company has elected to recognise changes In the fair value of cestain investment in equity securltles in other comprehensive Income. These changes are accumulated within the FUTOC equity
[nvestments reserve within equity, The Company transfers amounts from this reserve to retalned earning when the seeurlties are derecognlised.

Asat As 3t
31 March, 2023 31 March, 2022
11 Other Current tabilities Rs, {In Hundred} Rs. [In Hundred)
Other payaktles
Statutory Dues Payables 137.00 40,00
Others Payables [Year end accruals for expenses) 708.00 550.00
845.00 550,00
12 Current Provisions
Provision for doubtful advances 21,000.00 21,000.00
21,000.00 21,000.00
13  Current Tax Uablfitles {net)
Provision lor Income Tax {net} 5.851.089 -
5,451,09 -
14 Otherlncomg
Net galnf{loss) on sale of Current [nvestments 1,53.79 3,373.31
Rental Income . -

- Dividend Income from Non-current invastments 2,91,820.00 5,83,640.00
Unreallsed Geln on Mutual Fund tnvestments 96,962.47 52,756.65
Interest Income on Loan 5.600.00 5,600.00
Interest income- others - 4385

. Sundry Balances W/ Otf hd hd
- 3,95.915.26 6,45,423.91
31 March, 2023 31 March, 2022

Rs, {In Hundred) RS, [Io Hundred)
15 Other Expenses
Adveritlsement expenses 24192 230,58
Auditors' Remuneratlon

-Audit Fees 47200 47200

~Tax Audit Fees - -
-Certification Fees - 177.00
Electriclty expenses - 21.65
Corporation Taxes 34390 343.90
Usting Fees 472.00 295,00
Malntenance Charges of Building 1,022.00 1,002,00
Miscellaneous expenses 979.50 222,24
Prolessional charges - 4,223.82 2,424.80
Rates & Taxes 128.00 128.00
7,883.14 5317.17

SR
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Earning Per $hare[EPS

The foltowing reflects the prafit and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations: 31 March, 2023 31 March, 2022
Rs. {in Hundred) Rs. [in Hundred)
Net Prafit / [Loss) ottributable to equity sharehalders 3,05,720.44 4,91,733.51
Welghted averaga number of equity shares in calculating EPS 11,87,520 11,87,520
Nominal valus of Equity Shares 10 10
Bagle & Diluted EPS 25.74 4141

ACCOUNTING FOR TAXES ON INCOME

Provision for Tax Is made for current and deferred taxes.

Income tax expenst Is recognised In the income statement except to the extent that it refates to items recognlsed directly In equity or other comprehensive income, in which case It s recognlsed
directly in equity or other comprehensive Income.

Curent Incame tax for current period Is provided on the taxable Income and recognlzed at the amount expected to be pald to or recovered from the tax zuthoritles, using the tax rates and tax Jaws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Taxable Income dilfers from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of prafit and loss because of items of
Income or expanss that are taxable or deductible in other years and Items that are never taxable or deductible. Current tax assets and llabilitles are sek off and presented as net.

Deferred tax Is recognised using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and labllitles for financlal reporting purposes and the
corresponding amaunts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax Is measured at the tax rates that have been enatted or substantively enacted.

Slignificant Judgment Is required In determination of taxability of certaln [ncome and deductlbllity of certaln expenses during the estimation of the provision for Income taxes.

The Company has significant amourit of unused tax credits, since availabllity of future taxable income It not cestaln, rio pravision for deferred tax assets has bean made under IND AS 12 ' Income
Taxes'.

DETAILS OF DUES TO MICRO AND SMALL ENTERPRISES AS PER MSMED ACT 2006

The Company has circulated confirmation for the Identification of suppliers registered under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, On the basls of Information avalfable
with the Company under the aforesald Act, there are no Enterprises to whom the Company owes dues which are outstanding at year end. This has bean relled tpon by the Audltors.

The Company's activities dutlng the year were limlted to fnvestment Activitles and accordingly na separate disclosure Is requited In terms of Indian Accounting Standard 108, 'Operating Segments’,

The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic globally Is causing a slowdown of economic ackivity, In many countries, businesses ar= belng forced to cease or fimlt thelr aperations for long or indefinite
perlad of time, Measures taken to contaln the spread of the virus, including trave] bans, quarantines, so<fal distancing and closures of non-essentlal services have triggered disruptions to businesses
warldwlide, resulting in an economic slowdown and uncertaintles pertalning to future operations. The Company has considered the possible effects on its business that may reselt from COVID-19 on
the carrying amount of recelvables, other Investments and financing made by the Company as on the reporting date and Income to be accrued thersupon in coming years, Based on assumptions
and current estimates In view of the pandemic, the Company expects that the carrylng amounts of receivahles and other Investments will be recovered In due course of time. Also, there s no
materlal uncertalnty on the abllity of the Company to tontinue a3 a golng concern and there Is no materlal event/ circumstances due to COVID-15 as on the date of appraval of the Flnanelal
Statement that requires separale adjustment ar disclosure,

Related Party Disclosures
As per Indlan Accounting Standard {Ind AS) 24 ‘Related Party Disclasures’, the diselosure of transactions with related parties are given below:

Names of the related partles and deserfption of velationship

1. Key Management Personnel [KMP) and thelr relotives

Mrs. Avantika Gupta Director
Mr. Rajlv Agarwal Director
Mr. Dinesh Parakh Directer
Mr. AnkEt Saraiya Relative of Director
Mr, P. P, Gupta Relative of Director
Ms, Priyanka Lachhiramka Company Secretary

Detalls of Related Party Transactlans during the year ended 31st March 2023 and balance cutstanding as at 31st March 2023:

KMP & Relatlves of KMP
2022-23 2021-22
Transzctions:

On the basls of physical verification of assets and cash genaration capaclty of those assets, In the management perception, there Is no Impalrment of assets as on 31st March, 2023,

AddItfonal Regulatory Inforrmation
No transactions to report for the following disclosure requitements as notified by MCA pursuant to amended Schedule Ilifar
&) Crypto or Virtual Currency
b} Benaml Property held under Benam) transactions [Prohibition } Act, 1988 {45 of 1928)
¢} Loans and Advances repayable on demand or without specifylng any terms or peried of repayment to specifled perscns
d} Undisclosed fnzome
e) Reglstration of Charges and satlsfaction of Charges
f) Any advancement of fund through [ntermediaty for other benefizfarles.
¢) any transactions with ccmpantes struck off under Sectlon 248 of the comp Act, 2013 or sectlon 560 of
h} Refating to borrawed funds
{1} Wilful defavlter
{1} utllisation of borrowed fund and share premium
{l1} Discrepancy In utilisatlon of borrowings
{Iv]) Current maturity of leng term borrowings

@ .
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24. Ratios

Invested Fund

Ratle Numerator Denominator Current fear Previous Year % Varlance Reason for varlance
Current ratio Current Assets Current Liabllitlas 73.67 73.66 0.02]Increase in current
Invastment
Debt-aguity ratlo Total Debt Shareholder's Equity NA NA NA
Debt service coverage ratio |Earning for Debt Service = Net|Debt service = Interest & NA NA NA
Profit after taxes + Non-cash |Lease Payments +
operating Principal Repayments
expenses like depreciation
and other amortizations +
Interest + other
adjustments like loss on sale
of Fixed assets etc.
Return an equity ratic Net Profits after taxes — Average Shareholder's 0.06 0.10 ~42.72|Decrease in net profit.
Preference Dividend (if any} |Equity
Inventory turnover ratio Net sales Average inventory NA NA NA
=(Opening + Closing
2 balance / 2}
Trade receivables turnover |Net sales Average trade deblors = NA NA NA
ratio (Opening + Closing
d balance / 2)
Trade payables turnover  |Net Credit Purchases Average Trade Payables NA NA NA
ratio
Net capital turnover ratio  |Net Sales Woarking Capital = current NA NA NA
assets minus current
labilities.
Net profit ratio Net profit after tax Net Sales NA NA NA
Return on capital employed|Earning before interest and | Capital Employed = 0.07 0.13 -43.11|Decrease in net profit.
taxes Tangible Net Worth +
Total Debt + Deferred Tax
Liability
Return on investment Income Generated from Average Invested Funds 0.01 0.01 -42.48
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25 Fnanchal Instrument and Related Disclasure
A. Falr Value of Financial Assets and Financlal Liabilitles with Falr Value Hlerarchy
As at 31st March, 2023
Financial assets and financial labilities ot fair value Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Amortlsed Cost Total
Financial assets
Flnancial assets at FVTPL
- Investments 19,25,970.16 - . . 19,25,970.16

r

Financlal assets at FVTOCI
- [Avestments 4,93,04,562.12 41,30,402.75 - - 5,34,34,984.87

Financial asscts at Amartised cost

) - Cash & Cash Equivalents . - . 8,204.54 B,204.54
- Bank Balances other than above . - - - -
«Loans - - - - B
- Trade Receivables . - - - . .
= « [nvestments - - - - -
« Other Financial Assets - - - 10,0731 1,01,2317.31
Total Financial assets 5,12,30,532.28 41,30,402.75 - 1,05,421.85 5.54,70,356.88

Financlal Liabllitles
Finanelal Labllities at Amortlsed Cost

- Borrowings B - - - .
~Trade payables . - - - -
= Other Flnanctal Liabilitles - - - . -
Total Financlal Llakilltes . - - - -
As at 31st March, 2022

- FInanclal assets and financal liabilities at fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Amarised Cost Total

Financial assets
Flnanctal assets at FVTPL
« [nvestments 14,77,474.89 - - - 14,77,474.89

Financial assets at FVTOCI

P = [nvestments 3,62,39,542.74 41,21,106.06 - . £,03,60,648,80
Flnantfal assets at Amortised cost
= Cash & Cash Equivalents - . - 11,524.63 11,524.63
-Loans . - - - .
- Trade Receivables . . - 22931 22931
= Investments - - - - -
- Othet Flnancial Assets - - - 1,01,000.00 1,01,000.00
‘Total Financlal asscts 3,71,17,017.63 41,21,106.06 - 11,753.93 4,19,50,877.63

Financial tabllitles
Financial Uabllitles at Amortised Cost

- Barrowlngs . - - - .
= Trade payables - - . - . .
= Other Flnancial Uabkilities - - - - -
Total Finanelal Liabllitles - - - - -

B. FInancial Risk Management
The Company's activities expose It 10 a varlety of financlal risks, Inctucng market rlsk, credit rsk and liquldity risk. The Company contlnues to focus en a system-based approach to business risk
management. The Company’s financlal risk management process seeks to enable the early [dentification, evaluation and effective management of key tisks facing the business, Backed by strong
Internal control systems, the current Rlsk Management System rests on policles and procedures Issued by appropriate authorities; pracess of regular reviews £ audits to set approptiate lsk fimits
and controls; monitoting of such risks and compliance conflrmation for the same.
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Market Risk

Market risk Is the risk of any loss In future earnings, in realisable falr values or in future cash flows that may result from a change In the price of a financlal instrument. The value of a financial
Instrument may change a5 a result of changes In Interest rates, forelgn currency exchange rates, equity price fluctuations, liquidity and other market changes. Future speciiic market mo!

cannot be normally predicted with reasonable accuracy,

Forelgn currency risk
Forelgn curtency risk Is the risk that the falr value of future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate due to changes In foreign exchange rates, Currently the Company does not have any foreign
currency exposure,

Interest rate rlsk
The maln business of the Campany s trading In goads, shares and securltles, These activitles expose us to Intarest rate risk.

Equity Pdce Risk
Equity price risk Is related to change In market reference price of Investments and stocks In equity securlties held by the Company.

Uquidity Rlsk
LUquidity risk ts the risk than an entity will encounter difficulty In meeting obligation assoclated with flnanclal llabllities that are settled by defivering cash or other financial assets. The Company
mitigates lts liquidity risks by ensurlng timely collections of its recelvables and elase monitering of its credit cyels.

The Campany does net have any financlal liabilities at the reporting date.

Credit Risk
Credit risk Is the rlsk of financial loss arlsing from counter-party fallure to repay or service debt accoeding to the contractual terms or abligatlons, Credit 7lsk encompasses both the direct fisk of

default and the rsk of detecloration of eredit worthiness as well as cancentration risks.

Expected Credlt Less

Ind AS 103 outlines a 'three stzges’ model for Impalrment based on changes in credit quality since Initlal recognition as summarized below, The objective of the Impalrment requirements Is to
recognize life time axpected credit foss (ECLs) on all financlal Instrument for which there have been significant Encreases In credit risk since initlal recognition — whether assessed on an Individual or
collective basls.

At the reporting date, an allowance (or provision for loan and advances) Is required on stage 1 assets at 12 month ECLs, If the credit risk has significantly In¢reased since initial recognition (Stage 1),
an allowance [or provision) showld be recognised for the lifetime ECLs for financial instruments for which the eredit tisk hat Inereased signifizantly sTnce Initfal recognition {Stage 2) or which are
credit impalred (Stage 3}

The measurement of ECL is calculated using three maln components:

Prabability of default represents the likellhood of a barrower defaulting on l1s financial obligation elther over the next 12 months {12M FD) or over the remaining lifetime (Lifetime PD) of the
obligatlon,

Exposure at Default [EAD} is the total amount of an asset the entity Is exposed to at the time of default, EAD is deflne based on the characterlstics of the assets. EAD 13 dependent on the
outstanding exposure of an assets sanctioned amount of loan and credit conversion factor for non-funded exposure,

Loan Glven Default {LGD) It Is part of an assets which Is lost provided the assets default, The recovery rate is derive as a ratlo of discounted value of recovery cash flow {Incorporating the recovery
time} to total exposure of amount at the time of default.

The Company assesses when a significant Increase In credit risk has oceurred based on quantitative and qualitative assessments, Exposures are considered to have resulted In a significant Increase
in credit risk and are moved to Stage 2 when;

1. Quantitative test: Accounts that are 30 calendar days or more past due move to Stage 2 automatically, Accounts that are 90 calendar days or more past due move to Stage 3 automatically.
H. Qualitative test: Accounts that meet tha portfelio’s *high risk’ criterla and are subject to closer credit monitaring. High risk custemers may not be In arrears but either through an event or an

observed behaviour exhibit credit distress.
[ii. Reversal In Stapes: Exposures will move back to Stage 2 or Stage 1 respectively, once they no longer meet the quantitatbze criteria set out above, For exposures classified using the qualitative
test, when they no longer meet the criteria for a significant increase In eredit risk and when any eure criteria wsed far credit risk management are met.

The definltion of default for the purpose of determining ECLs has been aligned to the RBI definition of default, which cansiders indicators that the debtor Is unlikely to pay and 1s no later than when
the exposure Is more than 90 days past due.

Previous year figures have been reclassifled wherever appropriate to confitm to current year's presentation,
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KUSUM INDUSTRIAL GASES LTD

CIN : L23201WB1983PLC035663

Registered Office ;: P46 A, Radha Bazar Lane, 4th Floor, Kolkata - 700 001
email id. : kusumindustrial@gmail.com

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW AS AT 318T MARCH, 2023

{Rs. in Lakhs)
. As at year ended As at year ended
Particulars 31/03/2023 31/03/2022
Audited Audited
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before 1ax 387.70 639.55
Nen-cash adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows
Depreciation/amortization on continuing operation 0.33 0.56
Net gain/(loss) on sale of Current Investments (1.53) (3.37)
Net Unrealised gain/(loss) on Fair Valuation of Mutual Fund (96.96) (52.77)
Operating profit before working capital changes 289.54 583.97
Movements in working capital :
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables and other current liabilities 0.25 (0.74)
Decrease/(increase) in other Non current assets - 0.19
Decrease/(increase) in other current assels (5.05) 4.96
Cash generated from / (used in) operations 284.74 588.38
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) (80.40) (146.87)
Net Cash flow from / (used in) operating activitics (A) 204.34 441.51
Cash flow from investing activities
Proceeds from sale/(purchase) of current investments (Net) (207.66) (440.00)
Decrease/(increase) in long-term [oans and capital advances - -
Net Cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (B) (207.66) (440.00)
Cash flow from financing activities
Net Cash flow from / {used in) financing activities (C) - -
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B-+C) (3.32) 1.51
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 11.52 10.01
Cash and cash cquivalents at the end of the year §.20 11,52
Componenis of cash and cash equivalents
Balances with Banks
In Current Accounts 6.66 9.97
Stamp papers on hand - -
Cash on hand 1.54 1.55
Total cash and cash equivalents 8.20 11,52

Place : Kolkata
Dalc ; 27th May, 2023

By Order of the Board of Dirgetors

DIN : DUN56650




